
 

 

 

 

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Tuesday, 7th June, 2022 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 
 

The Guildhall 

 
 



2 

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 

Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 

to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the 

Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking 

space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which 

can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to 

attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make 

any necessary arrangements to assist your visit. 

 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 

Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 

preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II 

of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 

the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 

public inspection. 

 

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 

on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 

providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 

proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 

attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and 

for any footage to be broadcast or published.   

 

Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are published 

on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted in the 

meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council he/she will 

be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the 

Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider 

that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision. 

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day 

before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 

 

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 

papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 

film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Margaret Johnson, Democratic Services 

Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722085 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  

committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk. 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information. 

 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 

electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 

worcester.gov.uk 

 

 



3 

Environment Committee 
Tuesday, 7 June 2022 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

Chair: Councillor Andy Stafford (C) 
Vice-Chair: Councillor Karen Lewing (G) 

 
Councillor Mohammad Altaf (C) 

Councillor Marjory Bisset (G) 
Councillor Owen Cleary (C) 
Councillor Zoe Cookson (L) 

Councillor Simon Cronin (L) 
 

Councillor Nida Hassan (C) 

Councillor Robyn Norfolk (L) 
Councillor Andrew Roberts (C) 
Councillor Richard Udall (L) 

 

 

  
C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  

LD = Liberal Democrat 

 
AGENDA 

 

Part 1 
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 
1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a 

Member of the Committee. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 

 

3. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 

maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the 

Committee. 
 

4. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 4 

 Of the meeting held on 15th March 2022 to be approved and signed. 
 

5. Progress Update for the Environmental Sustainability Strategy Action Plan  

Page(s): 5 - 20 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Claire Neville 
Environmental Sustainability Officer 

Tel: 01905 722363 
 

 That the Committee notes the content of the report.   

 



4 

 
6. Public Bin Investment Programme  

Page(s): 21 - 22 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Tim Allen, Environmental Operations Project Manager 

Tel: Tel: 01905 752981 

 That the Committee notes the content of the report, that Phase one has been 
completed, and progress made to commence Phase Two.   

 

7. Management and Protection of Public Open Spaces  

Page(s): 23 - 26 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Lloyd Griffiths, Corporate Director - Operations, Homes and 
Communities 

Tel: 01905 722314 

 That the Committee notes the content of the report. 

 

8. Annual /Quarter 4 Performance Report 2021/22  

Page(s): 27 - 52 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Joanna Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer 
Tel: 01905 722407 

 That the Committee notes the Council’s Annual and Quarter 4 performance for 
2021/22.   
 

9. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chair is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration. 

 



ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 
15th March 2022 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Andy Stafford in the Chair 

 Councillors Altaf, B. Amos, Collins (Vice-
Chair), Cronin, Griffiths, Laurenson, 

Norfolk, Roberts and Udall 
 

Officers: 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Apologies       

Thalia Booth, Allotments Officer 

Sandra Green, Head of City Services 
Lloyd Griffiths, Corporate Director – 

Operations, Homes and Communities 
Claire Neville Environmental Sustainability 
Officer 

David Sutton, Deputy Director – Policy and 
Strategy 

 
Councillor Cleary 
 

 
 

43 Appointment of Substitutes  
 
None. 

 
44 Declarations of Interest  

 
The following declaration of interest was made: 
 

Councillor Griffiths – Update on the Delivery and Management of Allotments 
(Minute No. 50) – As an allotment holder in the city. 

 
45 Public Participation  

 

Patrick Allfrey spoke about ongoing issues related to Windsor Avenue Allotment 
site. He was concerned that there has been no progress with reinstating the 

recreational area. The surface material used for the replacement access road is 
unsafe and unsuitable. Furthermore, the new entrance gates are not as good as 

the previous ones and the water pipes are inadequate. The Chair thanked Mr 
Allfrey and advised him that Officers will provide him with a response to the points 
raised. 

 
46 Minutes  

 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 25th January 2022 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
47 Act on Energy Update  

 
The Committee received a presentation from Rachel Jones, Chief Executive 
Officer, Act on Energy. 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 15th March 2022 2 

 
 

Councillor Collins spoke prior to the presentation and explained the background to 

the invitation to Rachel Jones to address the Committee. 
 

Rachel Jones made her presentation. In summary, Act on Energy aims to 
eliminate fuel poverty and reduce carbon emissions by working with local 
communities and partners across both the public and private sectors. She 

explained their strategic aims, how they work with local authorities and the 
support that they can provide for householders locally. 

 
Following the presentation, there was an opportunity for Committee Members to 
ask questions. 

 
In conclusion, the Chair thanked Rachel Jones and emphasised the role that the 

Council can play in promoting the work undertaken by Act on Energy and 
signposting local residents. 
 

48 Wild about Worcester  
 

The Committee received a presentation from Paul Snookes of Worcester 
Environmental Group on the creation of a wildlife corridor around Worcester, using 
existing rights of way to connect green spaces, with the aim of improving mental 

health and wellbeing for local residents. 
 

In the ensuing discussion, Committee Members expressed support for this 
scheme.  

 
Reference was made to expanding the route to incorporate the west side of the 
river. Local Members will discuss this further with the Group. 

 
The Chair explained that he has asked Officer to present a paper to a future 

meeting, identifying how the Council can support this project. 
 

49 Cleaner and More Pleasant City: Anti-Litter Campaign Proposal  

 
The Committee considered a report on a new collaborative strategy to encourage 

the use of litter bins, in pursuance of a Notice of Motion agreed by the Council at 
its meeting on 21 September 2021. The Deputy Director – Policy and Strategy 
presented the report and highlighted the main points. 

 
In summary, the proposals include a “Love Worcester” litter picking competition, 

making litter-picking equipment available for Community Groups and individuals, 
engaging with local schools and encouraging Worcester businesses to take action 
on litter. The report also made reference to some suggestions which have not 

been pursued. 
 

In the ensuing discussion, Members made a number of suggestions to promote 
the proposals, including providing stickers which businesses can display to show 
support for Love Worcester, listing businesses which support Love Worcester on 

the Council website, using social media platforms to encourage businesses and 
individuals to share photos and stories, involving Parish Councils, celebrity 

endorsement and civic recognition of citizens who are active in reducing litter. 
Officers will consider all of these.  
 

Page 2



 15th March 2022 3 

 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee support the proposals set out in this 

paper to help reduce the prevalence of litter in Worcester. 
 

50 Update on the Delivery and Management of Allotments  
 
The Committee received a report on work undertaken on Allotment Management 

since November 2021. The Head of City Services presented the report and 
summarised the main points, including the appointment of a new dedicated 

Allotment Officer and the issue of a new tenancy agreement which will come onto 
force on 1st July 2022. 
 

In the ensuing discussion, it was clarified that the Allotments Forum has not been 
disestablished by the Council, but it no longer has a role in the Council’s 

management structure of allotments. 
 
In response to a question about the potential to develop new allotment sites, the 

Corporate Director – Operations, Homes and Communities stated that Officers will 
give consideration to this and discuss with the Chair and Vice-Chair. 

  
RESOLVED: That the Committee note the contents of this report, and in 
particular the work undertaken on Allotment Management since 

November 2021. 
 

51 Proposed Committee Performance Scorecard 2022/23  
 

The Committee considered the proposed content of the Environment Performance 
Scorecard for 2022/23. The Corporate Director – Operations, Homes and 
Communities presented the report and summarised the main points, including 

new projects and indicators, and current projects that have been removed. He 
made reference to the Bereavement Services Facilities Review and explained that, 

due to commercial sensitivity, this well be taken forward through Member 
briefings rather that at this Committee.  
 

Officers responded to questions and comments from Committee Members.  
 

In answer to a question about the indicator for carbon emissions, and whether 
this is consistent with the Council’s ambitions following the declaration of a 
climate emergency, the Deputy Director – Policy and Strategy explained that 

there is a substantial amount of background information to this issue and a 
written response will be provided. 

 
Members also raised the 60% satisfaction target for cemeteries and crematorium 
and the proposed indicator for carbon emissions.  

 
The Chair acknowledged these points and made reference to the fact that targets 

for new indicators have yet to be confirmed. He proposed that the Corporate 
Director – Operations, Homes and Communities be authorised to review and 
finalise the scorecard in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair and Members 

agreed to proceed on this basis. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee authorise the Corporate Director – 
Operations, Homes and Communities to agree the proposed Scorecard for 
2022/23 in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair. 

Page 3



 15th March 2022 4 

 
 

 

52 Any Other Business  
 

None. 
 
 

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 8.50p.m. 
 

 
Chair at the meeting on 

7th June 2022 

Page 4



 

 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 7th June 2022 
 

Report of: Deputy Director – Corporate Policy and Strategy  
 

 
Subject: PROGRESS UPDATE FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 

STRATEGY ACTION PLAN  
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That the Committee notes the content of this report. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 Following the declaration of the climate emergency in July 2019, the Environmental 

Sustainability Strategy for the City of Worcester was approved by this Committee in 

October 2020.  

2.2 This Committee then approved the Action Plan for the first phase of delivery of the 

strategy in March 2021.  
 

2.3 In order to ensure effective governance of the strategy and associated action plan, it 

was agreed that this committee would receive progress reports on the delivery of the 
daction plan twice yearly.  

2.4 This is the second of these reports.  

3. Overall Progress  
 

3.1 Progress continues to be made in a number of key areas set out within the Action 
Plan. This section of the report identifies some of the highlights, with more detailed 

coverage later in the report. 

3.2 The introduction of nine new EV charge points at St. Martin’s Gate car park in 
September 2021 has saved over 9.3 tons of CO2 to date.  Plans to invest a further 

£200K in charging points in other City Council car parks are now progressing. 

3.3 Over 160 homes, occupied by residents with a household income of £30,000 or less, 

will have received energy efficiency improvements by the end of August 2022.  The 
improvements are valued at approximately £10,000 per property.   
 

It is estimated that this will reduce CO2 emissions in Worcester by approximately 
67.62 tonnes per annum (at 0.42 tonnes per property). 

 
3.3 An ebike trial scheme for local businesses launched in Spring 2022, in partnership 

with the University of Worcester.  Following training, bikes have become the main 

method for the civil enforcement team to move around the city.  Further ebikes 
will be available for other staff to use by late summer.  

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



 

This scheme was funded through an £18,000 grant secured by the City Council from 
the Local Government Association. 

 
3.5 Over the last six months 22 Worcester organisations, including nine schools, have 

received an Environmental Community Grant of up to £1,000 from the City Council.  

This has helped to fund the creation of water habitats, fruit and vegetable patches, 
bird and bat boxes and bug hotels, and many other initiatives which will benefit the 

environment. 

3.6 The City Council supported the planting of a further 1,500 trees at Aconbury Orchard 
and 400 trees at Perdiswell Park over the winter (2021-22). 

3.7 Details for each action within the plan are provided in the performance report at 
Appendix 1, and the following sections of this report provide further commentary on 

a theme by theme basis. 

4 Carbon Neutral City Council  

 
Emissions from buildings 
 

4.1 There has been a 7.4% decrease in the City Council’s CO2 emissions from the 
heating of buildings in 2021-22 compared to 2020-21. This may be in part due to the 

second lockdown. Heating related carbon emissions in the last financial year were 
554.72tCO2e.  
 

4.2 The City Council uses green zero-emission rated electricity across all of its sites, 
meaning that it has recorded no emissions from electricity usage (using market 

based emission factors) for the last two consecutive years (2021-2 and 2020-1).  
 

4.3 The Council’s overall carbon footprint for 2021-2, including emissions from buildings, 

transport and facilities run by third parties such as Freedom Leisure, is currently 
being calculated and will be reported to the Committee in the Autumn. 

 
4.4 Officers are investigating the potential to install more solar panels on the roof of St. 

Martin’s Gate car park.  The current panels are reducing the City Council’s carbon 

footprint by approximately 23,368 kg per year.  Since their introduction in late March 
2019, the panels have produced 126,976 units of electricity.  This equates to a 

£15,237.12 reduction (at a rate of 12p per unit) to the City Council’s energy bills.   

4.5 An independent assessment from the European Development funded Public Energy 

Efficiency Programme has highlighted the very limited scope to install solar panels at 
the Guildhall, Museum and Art Gallery and Commandery, due to the buildings’ age 

and listed status.  Officers are currently investigating options for a short and long 
term strategy to decarbonise the Council’s major buildings.  

 
4.6 Property Services have undertaken a replacement programme for inefficient lighting 

 over the past two years across all Council-owned sites, installing LED lighting and 
PIR controls where applicable. 

5. Emissions from transport 

 
5.1 The Energy Savings Trust is currently undertaking a free assessment of the City 

Council’s use of vehicles - including its refuse fleet, street cleaning and maintenance 

Page 6



 

vehicles and business travel) - with a view to further reduction of the City Council’s 
CO2 emissions.   

 
5.2 Officers will review any options and recommendations that are presented, and bring 

an appropriate report to this Committee in due course. 

 
5.3 The Civil Enforcement team are now using ebikes to travel around the city, following 

bespoke training delivered by Bikeability Worcestershire.   
 

5.4 The team has reported high levels of satisfaction with the ebikes citing speed, zero 

emissions, ease of use and agility as the key benefits.  Officers can now travel at 
greater speed to hotspots where parking issues have been reported.  The team has 

also created a rota of visits to Worcester schools where parking is an issue, which 
are undertaken by bike.   

 
5.6 Officers are now planning to acquire more ebikes and make them available to all 

staff via an online booking system.  This is expected to go ‘live’ in the summer. 

 
5.7 In December the Personnel and General Purposes Committee approved a £50,000 

investment in bike storage facilities at the Guildhall, Crematorium, Six Ways Depot 
and St Martin’s Gate car park.  Construction of the new facilities is currently in 
preparation and is expected to be completed by Autumn 2022. 

 
5.8 The City Council currently offers employees the opportunity to make tax and NI 

savings against the cost of a new bike and accessories.  HR will make a proposal to 
introduce a similar offer for staff who wish to buy an electric vehicle in the second 
half of the year. 

 
5.9 Members are reminded that the Council continues to offer a bicycle mileage 

allowance to staff and Councillors for travel on Council business. 
 

6. Embedding sustainability in all Council work 

 
To ensure that wider consideration is given to the impact the Council’s work has on 

the environment, the following clauses will be included in the implications section of 
all Council committee reports from July 2022 onwards: 

 
Carbon Management  

Evaluate what impact the proposed activity will have on the City’s carbon emissions 
and set out any steps to mitigate this. If there are no significant effects on carbon 

emissions or if these are not known, then say so. 

Biodiversity 

Explain what impact the proposed activity will have on wildlife and the natural 
environment, and what actions will be taken to mitigate any impact. 

7. Carbon Neutral Worcester 

 
7.1 Reducing emissions from homes 
 

The Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme (GHG LADS) is a multi-
phase programme being delivered as a corporate project within the City Council.  

Page 7



 

The aim of the scheme is to improve energy efficiency within homes occupied by 
people on low incomes (less than £30,000 or on qualifying benefits).  

 
7.2 The scheme will reduce carbon emissions and also decrease the number of 

Worcester households suffering with fuel poverty.  

 
7.3 A total of 161 Worcester properties have already been or will have received energy 

efficiency improvements by 31 August 2022, as a result of this programme.  It is 
estimated that this will reduce CO2 emissions in Worcester by approximately 67.62 
tonnes per annum (at 0.42 tonnes per property). 

 
7.4 There are various phases to the scheme:   

 
Phase 1A of the project has now been completed. Seven properties received 

external wall insulation, with a total investment of £70,364. This was an average 
spend of £10,052 per property. 
 

Phase 1B has been extended until 31st August 2022 in agreement with BEIS.  
100 Platform homes are being upgraded, in addition to 26 owner occupied homes. 

Ninety of the social housing properties are being retrofitted with solar PV, as well as 
loft insulation and cavity wall insulation where required. In addition, ten solid wall 
properties will be insulated. The owner-occupied properties will be upgraded with 

solid wall insulation, cavity wall insulation and loft insulation.  Solar PV will also be 
installed on 10 properties.  

 
It is anticipated that approximately £640,000 of energy efficiency improvements will 
have been delivered through this phase of the scheme by the end of August 2022.  

 
7.5 Phase 2 of the scheme is also underway, which offers loft and cavity wall insulation, 

energy efficient storage heaters, solar PV and other smaller measures, such as boiler 
controls and low energy lighting.  
 

 The City Council received nearly 200 expressions of interest in this scheme through 
Act On Energy; however this resulted in only 28 eligible applications. The conversion 

was much lower than anticipated.  Installations commenced in April at four 
properties, with a further seven booked in at the start of May. 

 

7.6 Phase 3 of the LADS scheme is in preparation, in addition to the new Home Upgrade 
Scheme (HUG).  This phase will focus properties with no gas connection.  The City 

Council has received an allocation of just under £1 million between the two schemes. 
The deadline for completing installations for both schemes is 31st March 2023.  

 

The delivery proposal has been submitted to the Midlands Net Zero Hub.  Measures 
will include solid wall insulation (approximately 30%) alongside lower cost measures, 

such as loft and cavity wall insulation. 
 
7.7 Increased material costs and increased demand nationally for contractors continues 

to pose a risk to all phases of the scheme. 
 

  

Page 8



 

8. Active Travel 

8.1 The City Council’s policy and resources committee approved Towns Fund investment 

proposals in March 2022 to create more than seven miles of new and upgraded 
walking and cycling routes, the multi-million-pound Kepax Bridge across the River 
Severn from Gheluvelt Park, new secure cycle parking and a proposed bike hire 

scheme.  The plan has now been sent to the Department for Levelling Up for 
approval. 

8.2 This Spring the City Council launched an e-bike trial scheme for local businesses, in 
partnership with the University of Worcester.  The pilot, which was supported by an 

£18,000 grant from the Local Government Association and has now concluded, 
aimed to establish the benefits and barriers which need to be overcome to 

encourage more businesses to invest in ebikes. 

8.3 The Council has also agreed to create a new post to focus on promoting active 

travel. 

9. Zero emission vehicle charging in car parks 

9.1 Recent research from Midlands Connect estimates that Worcestershire could have 
130,004 electric vehicles on its roads by 2030 – a 2,573 increase on today.  The 

report suggests that approximately 2,730 new public charging points will be needed 
across the county to support the shift. 

9.2 Between the installation of nine EV charge points in St. Martins Gate car park in 
September 2021 and 1 May 2022, 180 individual drivers have used the charge points 

for 732 sessions.  By fuelling vehicles with green tariff electricity as opposed to 
petrol or diesel, the charge points at St. Martin’s Gate have so far saved 9.3 tons of 

CO2 – the equivalent of planting 56 trees. 

9.3 Following agreement by P&R Committee to allocate a further £200K to install more 

electric charging points in City Council car parks, officers will bring recommendations 
to the Environment Committee in the second half of the year. 

9.4 Key factors to consider will be the charge points’ proximity to properties with no off-
road parking; connectivity to the power supply and avoidance of areas which are 

prone to flooding. 

9.5 Officers will also work in partnership with the Energy Savings Trust and 

Worcestershire County Council to create an EV charging term strategy for Worcester.  
This will address both the short and long term challenges which need to be overcome 

to ensure the city is equipped to meet the future needs of residents, businesses and 
visitors. 

10. Support for car clubs for residents in Worcester 

10.1 Following a motion to Council on 30 November 2021, members agreed “:That the 
Council request the Corporate Director - Operations, Homes, and Communities in 
conjunction with the Environment Committee to update the Environmental 

Sustainability Action Plan to include an action with the objective to encourage and 
support the introduction of car clubs in Worcester. This will be incorporated into the 

action plan update due to be considered by this committee in the Autumn”. 

Page 9



 

10.2 Officers have met with local representatives from Enterprise Cars, who are keen to 
set up car clubs across Worcester.  They have indicated that the position of cars 

would need to be agreed on a case by case basis. 
 

10.3 Factors to be taken into account will include the level of anticipated demand from 

residents in particular Worcester locations; whether an on-street parking space 
would give the car greater visibility, and the proximity of Council-run car parks to 

the homes of residents who want to access the cars. 
 

10.4 There has been a strong level of interest to set up a car club in the Arboretum.  

Officers have approached two venues in the area; Enterprise has agreed both would 
be viable locations for a car club vehicle.  If agreement is reached, Enterprise has 

indicated that a car could be made available within a matter of weeks. 
 

10.5 Once the first vehicle has been successfully established, officers will work with 
Enterprise to identify further locations across the city for club cars. 

 

11. Support for community environmental projects 

11.1 In July 2021, this Committee approved an allocation of £20,000 to launch an 
Environmental Community Grants scheme. This scheme attracted successful 
applications from 22 local organisations – including nine schools, the RSPB, 

Worcester Environmental Group and St. Paul’s Hostel for the Homeless. 

11.2 The funding supported the installation of bird and bat boxes, hedgehog houses and 

insect hotels; the creation of gardens where residents of all ages could learn to grow 
and cook fruit and vegetables; tree planting and facilities to boost recycling. 

Following the success of the scheme, the budget has been exhausted. 

 12.    Sustainable Economy  

12.1 Funding opportunities are being explored in order to assist with the delivery a new 

employment and skills strategy for the City Council.  The authority is and will 
continue to look for funding from a range of sources to support the green agenda, 
which could include UKSPF and other new funding regimes. 

12.2 The Town Investment Plan’s Community Skills & Enterprise project includes a new 

"Building Block 2" construction training centre at Dines Green that will include 
training in the installation of green / low carbon technology. 

13. Natural Environment 

The City Council’s biodiversity action programme underpins all work in this area. 

 
13.1 The authority has supported the planting of well over 10,000 trees in Worcester over 

the last five years.  1,500 saplings were planted at the Aconbury Orchard Nature 

Reserve this winter, in partnership with the Worcester Environmental Group (WEG) 
and Nunnery Wood High School eco club.  A further 400 trees were planted at 

Perdiswell Park as part of the City’s Charter 400 celebrations. 
 
1,000 trees will be planted at Perdiswell Park in winter 2022/23, extending the existing 

area of woodland.  Almost five hectares of wildflower meadow are currently being 
created at the site in a bid to boost bird, bat and bee numbers. 

Page 10



 

13.2 The City Council has reduced the frequency of grass cutting on verges around 
Worcester and has invested £48,000 in new ‘cut and collect’ mowing equipment, 

allowing for the growth of more wildflowers. 
 

13.3 The authority is giving advice on how to boost biodiversity on Worcester’s allotment 

site, via a newly launched quarterly newsletter for allotment tenants. 
 

13.4 The City Council works in close partnership with local organisations including the 
Worcester Environmental Group (WEG) and Worcestershire Wildlife Trust   The 
authority has committed resources to support the creation of the ‘Wild About 

Worcester Way’ - a 12-mile walking route around the city, proposed by WEG.   
 

Members of the Environmental Operations team are working with WEG and the Trust 
to enhance biodiversity and improve access where required along the route.   

 
13.5 The City Council also works in partnership with the RSPB.  The Malvern and 

Worcester branch of the charity has installed bird boxes at a number of Council-run 

sites over the last 12 months, including Astwood Cemetery, Cromwell Crescent Park 
and Laugherne Brook Nature Reserve.  Volunteers have provided training and give 

regular advice to members of the Environmental Operations team. 
 

14. Preparing for climate change  

14.1 The Environment Agency is working in partnership with Worcestershire County 
Council to reduce the risk of flooding to 26 properties in the Lower Wick area of 

Worcester.  Toronto Close is situated near the River Teme and Laugherne Brook and 
has a history of flooding, most recently in February 2020 when 16 houses were 
flooded. 

14.2 Flood Re, a joint initiative between the Government and insurers, organised a 
‘Floodmobile’ visit to Worcester on 15 March 2022, showcasing property protection 

measures against flooding and highlighting the need for these.   Two separate 
sessions were run at Copenhagen Street and Gheluvelt Park. 
 

15. Resource Efficiency  

15.1 The City Council implements the county-wide social media campaign encouraging 

recycling, reduction of food waste, re-using items and zero waste.  The campaign 
coincides with times when a greater volume of food and products are purchased, 

such as Christmas and Easter.  Nationwide campaigns such as national Recycling 
Week and Compost Awareness Week are also supported. 
 

16. Single use plastics elimination 
 

16.1 On 30 November 2021 a motion was presented to the Council to encourage 
takeaway food businesses in Worcester to reduce their reliance on plastic. 
 

16.2 This follows a Government consultation launched in the same month to ban single-
use plastic cutlery, plates and polystyrene cups.  

 
16.3 Officers met with representatives of the local campaign group Plastic Free Worcester 

with a view to working together to encourage change.  The group indicated that it 

was already affiliated to the national Plastic Free Champion scheme, originally 
created by campaign group Surfers Against Sewage. 

Page 11



 

16.4 When businesses sign up at https://plasticfree.org.uk/get-involved/business/# they 
can access a free toolkit, with a practical step by step guide to eliminating single use 

plastic.  Once demonstratable progress has been made, the business is sent a Plastic 
Free Champion certificate which can be displayed on their premises. 
 

16.5 A joint publicity campaign was developed to highlight Government proposals and to 
encourage more Worcester businesses to become Plastic Free Champions. 

 

This resulted in coverage in the Worcester News: 
https://www.worcesternews.co.uk/news/19967032.food-businesses-urged-cut-

single-use-plastic/  
https://www.worcesternews.co.uk/news/20029818.plastic-free-worcester-make-

food-business-eco-friendly/ 

and Worcester Observer:  https://worcesterobserver.co.uk/news/worcesters-cafes-

takeaways-and-restaurants-encouraged-to-become-plastic-free/ 
 

The campaign was also promoted through the City Council’s social media accounts 

and at https://www.facebook.com/plasticfreeworcester 

16.6 To date 39 businesses in Worcester have signed up to be Plastic Free Champions.  
The City Council will now work with Worcestershire Regulatory Services to further 

promote proposed Government action and the Plastic Free Champion scheme. 
 

17. Engagement 

 
17.1 The City Council plans to host an Environment Summit at the Guildhall on Friday 30 

September.  Approximately 100 representatives from local businesses, community 
groups, organisations and educational settings will be invited. 
 

17.2 The event will focus on five priorities identified in the environmental sustainability 
action plan:  improving Worcester’s infrastructure for EVs; decarbonising homes and 

buildings; active travel; boosting biodiversity and reducing waste. 
 

17.3 The event will also be used to gauge opinion and support for setting up a new 

Environmental Forum, with sub-groups to ensure progress in these areas continues. 
 

 
Contact Officer: Claire Neville, Environmental Sustainability Officer 
 Claire.neville@worcester.gov.uk  Tel. 01905 722363 

Background Papers:  Appendix 1: Report from Pentana 
 

Page 12

https://plasticfree.org.uk/get-involved/business/
https://www.worcesternews.co.uk/news/19967032.food-businesses-urged-cut-single-use-plastic/
https://www.worcesternews.co.uk/news/19967032.food-businesses-urged-cut-single-use-plastic/
https://www.worcesternews.co.uk/news/20029818.plastic-free-worcester-make-food-business-eco-friendly/
https://www.worcesternews.co.uk/news/20029818.plastic-free-worcester-make-food-business-eco-friendly/
https://worcesterobserver.co.uk/news/worcesters-cafes-takeaways-and-restaurants-encouraged-to-become-plastic-free/
https://worcesterobserver.co.uk/news/worcesters-cafes-takeaways-and-restaurants-encouraged-to-become-plastic-free/
https://www.facebook.com/plasticfreeworcester
mailto:Claire.neville@worcester.gov.uk


1 

Sustainability Action Plan Overview 
 

Generated on: 25 May 2022 

 
 

 

 ESS-01 Low carbon buildings 

 

ESS-02 To produce a business case to evaluate revenue savings with the 

introduction of zero emission vehicles in accordance with the fleet 
procurement schedule 

 ESS-03 Low emission business travel 

 ESS-04 Low emission commuting 

 ESS-05 Embedding sustainability 

 ESS-06 Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme 

 ESS-07 Domestic energy efficiency (social housing) 

 ESS-08 Active Travel 

 ESS-09 TIP AP Electric Charging Points 

 ESS-10 Investigate options for heat networks 

 ESS-11 Support for community environmental projects 

 ESS-12 Employment and Skills strategy - carbon economy 

 ESS-13 City Biodiversity Action Programme 

 ESS-14 / BIO-04 Tree planting 

 ESS-15 Sustainable planting 

 ESS-16 / BIO-07 Lyppard Ponds Special Area of Conservation 

 ESS-17 / BIO-08 Waterways biodiversity enhancement 

 ESS-18 Natural Water Management on Barbourne Brook 

 ESS-19 Flood resilience 

 ESS-20 Waste hierarchy promotion campaign 

 ESS-21 Single Use Plastics elimination 

 ESS-22 Establish Forum for the Environment 

 ESS-23 Annual summit for the Environment 

 

Page 13 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



2 

Sustainability Action Plan Update 
 
 

Action Status 

 Cancelled 

 Overdue; Neglected 

 Unassigned; Check Progress 

 Not Started; In Progress; Assigned 

 Completed 
 

  

 

ESS-01 Low carbon buildings 

Consultant surveys have been produced for Commandery; 
MAG and the Guildhall. Recommendation is for solar panels 

on all buildings. Working through other suggestions to 
review or implement. 
 

Project due date amended from March 2022 to August 
2022. 

Sponsor Kevin Moore 

Due Date 01-Aug-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status 
 

 

ESS-02 To produce a business case to evaluate revenue savings with the 

introduction of zero emission vehicles in accordance with the fleet procurement 
schedule 

The Energy Savings Trust are currently undertaking a free 
review of the City Council's vehicle fleet, with a view to 

making recommendations on lower emission alternatives for 
the future.  The report is expected to be completed by the 

end of Summer 2022 

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 30-Nov-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  
 

ESS-03 Low emission business travel 

Civil enforcement team received safety training from 
Bikeability Worcestershire on 27/28 February 
 

- Press release issued w/c 7 March - achieved front page 
coverage on Worcester Observer, coverage in Highways 

News and Twitter 'likes' from the local MP, bike and active 
travel campaign groups, schools and councillors from across 
the political spectrum 

 
- Woo Bike scheme up and running w/c 14 March.  

Extensive social media publicity and several approaches 
from businesses and individuals wishing to trial an e-bike. 
 

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 31-Dec-2021 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Dec-2021 

Current Status 

 

Page 14



3 

 

ESS-04 Low emission commuting 

Works at Guildhall are out for quotations. Surveys and 
specifications have been prepared for the remaining works 
and tenders have been received. 

 
Works expected to be complete by Autumn 2022. 

Sponsor Kevin Moore 

Due Date 30-Jun-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  
 

ESS-05 Embedding sustainability 

Reviewed staff sustainability training course. Minor changes 
have been made and it is now ready to launch to all staff. 

 
Project due date amended from January 2022 to June 2022 

in line with service planning.  

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 30-Jun-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Jan-2022 

Current Status  
 

ESS-06 Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme 

Delivery continues on Phase 1B of the scheme with a 
deadline extension of 31st August 2022. A total of 37 out of 
140 properties (40 O/O & 100 RSL on the original bid) have 

been upgraded so far. Contractor availability and new PAS 
standards did set the project back several months but the 

extension until the end of August means that we are on 
track to now complete 26 O/O and 100 RSL properties. As a 
result of the extension agreed with the Department for 

Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS), it is 
proposed that the deadline for this project will be extended 

to 31st August 2022. 
 

Phase 2 of delivery is also underway. This phase is focused 
on upgrading low efficiency storage heaters in off-gas flats 

and the installation of other measures in homes such as 
upgraded doors, windows and boiler controls. The target is 

80 properties. The cut-off date for referrals was 31st March 
2022 at which point we had received 59 referrals and are 

currently on track to complete all 59 properties by 30th 
June 2022 providing we have no cancellations. We received 
nearly 200 expressions of interest for this phase of the 

scheme but ultimately only 66 applications (7 of which have 
since declined measures or cancelled their applications). We 

are exploring ways of addressing this low conversion rate 
under the next phase of the scheme. 
 

A further £1million of funding has been awarded to 

Worcester City Council under the Sustainable Warmth 
Competition which combines Local Authority Delivery Phase 

3 (LAD3) for on-gas properties and Home Upgrade Grant 
Phase 1 (HUG1) for off-gas properties. The delivery deadline 
is 31st March 2023. A delivery plan has been submitted for 

approval to the Midlands Energy Hub with a target of 

Sponsor Tom Mountford 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status 

 

Page 15



4 

installing 113 measures over the next 12 months, with 
some properties receiving multiple measures. 

 
Project is showing as red as the due date was 31 March 

2022. However project has been extended nationally with 
additional phases. Due date to be amended to March 31 

2023. 
 

 

ESS-07 Domestic energy efficiency (social housing) 

Project not started. Sponsor Tom Mountford 

Due Date 31-Mar-2023 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2023 

Current Status  
 

ESS-08 Active Travel 

Business case approved at P&R in March and Summary 
Document submitted to Government. Confirmation of 

funding is expected during April 2022. 
 

  

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 31-Mar-2025 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2025 

Current Status  
 

ESS-09 TIP AP Electric Charging Points 

Main contract works completed and chargers went live on 

4th October, 2021. Some minor items still outstanding to 
area around transformer unit - tarmac surface and fencing. 

Maintenance contract in place for 12no. chargers with 
Swarco UK Ltd. (5yrs)  
 

Sponsor Kevin Moore 

Due Date 31-Aug-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Aug-2022 

Current Status  
 

ESS-10 Investigate options for heat networks 

Final presentation from the consultants took place on the 
13th December and the final report is due very shortly. A 

technically viable option for a heat network has been 
presented. Partners to review and decide next steps.  

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 30-Jun-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

30-Jun-2022 

Current Status  
 

ESS-11 Support for community environmental projects 

• Progress - 10 applications received by the deadline of 

March 31st 2022.  
• Issues - 9 of the 10 were successful with a variety of 

projects being supported to include Butterfly Garden, Mini 
Beast Extravaganza and a Biodiversity Garden.  
• Impact - timescales met for completing the funding 

Sponsor Tom Mountford 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Page 16



5 

scheme with a total spend slightly over budget of 
£20,253.67  

 
Scheme now completed on time. An update will be provided 

to the Environment Committee in June 2022. 
 

ESS-12 Employment and Skills strategy - carbon economy 

Funding opportunities are being explored from a range of 
sources to support the green agenda in order to assist with 
the delivery a new employment and skills strategy for the 

City Council. 

Sponsor Nick Kay 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  
 

ESS-13 City Biodiversity Action Programme 

Discussions with partner organisations and members about 

the scope and potential projects to include in this action 
programme have been held. A draft action programme has 
been produced and is being discussed prior to presentation 

for agreement at the Environment Committee in November.  

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 30-Nov-2021 

Original Due 

Date 

30-Nov-2021 

Current Status  
 

ESS-14 / BIO-04 Tree planting 

Due date amended from 31 March 2022 to 31 May 2022 in 
line with the Biodiversity Action Programme. 

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 31-May-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  
 

ESS-15 Sustainable planting 

April 2022 

Wildflowers have been planted on additional grass verges 
across Worcester, in partnership with WEG. 
 

May 2022 
First phase of Perdiswell Park has begun, to create almost 

five hectares of wildflower meadow.  The second phase, 
which is due to begin work in November 2022 will see 2.5 
hectares of new native woodland planted. 

 
Due date to be amended to April 2023. 

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 30-Nov-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

30-Apr-2022 

Current Status 

 

 

ESS-16 / BIO-07 Lyppard Ponds Special Area of Conservation 

Due date amended from December 2022 to February 2023 

in line with Biodiversity Action Programme. 

Sponsor Sandra Green; 

David Sutton 

Due Date 28-Feb-2023 

Original Due 31-Dec-2022 

Page 17



6 

Date 

Current Status  
 

ESS-17 / BIO-08 Waterways biodiversity enhancement 

Work on this action has not yet started Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 31-Dec-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Dec-2022 

Current Status  
 

ESS-18 Natural Water Management on Barbourne Brook 

Due date amended from 31 Dec 21 to 30 Sep 22 as 

proposed in Service Plan 2022/23. 

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 30-Sep-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Dec-2021 

Current Status  
 

ESS-19 Flood resilience 

Flood Re, a joint initiative between the Government and 
insurers, organised a ‘Floodmobile’ visit to Worcester on 15 

March 2022, showcasing property protection measures 
against flooding and highlighting the need for these.   Two 

separate sessions were run at Copenhagen Street and 
Gheluvelt Park. 
 

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 30-Jun-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

30-Jun-2022 

Current Status 
 

 

ESS-20 Waste hierarchy promotion campaign 

Christmas waste reduction social media campaign ran 

on @myworcester Twitter and the Worcester Facebook page 
between 15 December and 2 January.  There were 23 

waste-related posts during this period - including videos 
encouraging people to recycle more over Christmas; time 
tables for bin collections over the festive period and tips to 

help reduce waste. 
 

The three posts with the highest reach on Facebook were: 
 How and where to recycle electric items (reached 

24,089 people) 

 How to dispose of your Christmas tree (reached 
14,883 people) 

 Re-opening of household recycling centres on 27 
December (reached 11,625 people) 

 

Sponsor Rob Byrne; 

David Sutton 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Dec-2021 

Current Status 

 

Page 18



7 

 

ESS-21 Single Use Plastics elimination 

Have met with the Plastic Free Worcester campaign group 
and have established that they are already running a Plastic 
Free Champion programme, which a number of Worcester 

businesses have signed up for. 
 

Photo call arranged for 2 March at local cafe which has 
signed up for the scheme.  Cllr Andy Stafford and 
representative from Plastic Free Worcester will attend. 

 
The story will promoted via local and social media.  

 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services - food inspection team, 
is keen to work with us to encourage local businesses to 

make changes ahead of national proposed action from 
central Government.  Next step is to produce an e-

newsletter highlighting the proposed changes and 
encouraging Worcester businesses to sign up to the Plastic 
Free Champion scheme. 

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 31-Dec-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Dec-2022 

Current Status 

 

 

ESS-22 Establish Forum for the Environment 

Following discussion with the Environment Committee 

Steering Group, the agreed approach is to hold the Summit 
first and use the event to recruit participants for a future 

Environment Forum 

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 31-Oct-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Dec-2021 

Current Status  
 

ESS-23 Annual summit for the Environment 

Following discussion with the Managing Director, the 
Summit is now scheduled to take place in the second half of 

September 2022 

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 31-Oct-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Dec-2021 

Current Status  
 
  

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 7th June 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director - Operations, Homes and Communities 
 

 
Subject: PUBLIC BIN INVESTMENT PROGRAMME – UPDATE REPORT 

 
1. Recommendation 

 

1.1  That Committee notes the content of the report, and in particular the 
completion of Phase One and commencement of Phase Two 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 A scheme to improve the public bin infrastructure across the City was developed 

following a review into the management and delivery of Street Scene services.  

 
2.2 A report was presented to this Committee on 26th January 2021 proposing 

improvements to the current provision of litter bins across the city, including the 
introduction of more public recycling bins in high footfall areas. The Committee 
resolved that officers would work with Members and produce Ward level action 

plans. 

2.3 At its meeting of 8th June 2021, the Policy and Resources Committee approved the 

allocation of £75,000 from the 2020/21 surplus (City Delivery Fund) for enhanced 
public waste collection services including Saturday Skips and increases in bins and 

collections. It was identified that £48,000 of this was required for bins and 
collection improvements which would allow specific locations to be improved and for 

additional locations to be added (Phase One) to resolve immediate problems.  
 

2.4 Following an initial analysis of Ward litter bin needs, the costs associated with 

Phase One were identified as £80,000 and it was agreed with the Chair of the 
Committee that £32,000 be re-allocated from other Environmental Operations 

elements of the Fund to enable ordering of equipment and planning to commence. 
 

2.5 Phase One of the scheme considered, consolidation of multiple bins at a wide range 

of locations, with an increase in capacity, and the introduction of additional bins to 
new locations. 

 
2.6 Ward Member consultation commenced in August 2021. This consultation sought 

agreement from Members to agree the public bin improvements required 

immediately for Phase One, and those to be carried out as Phase Two from April 
2022 onwards. 

 
2.7 Following consultation and confirmation of bin quantities for Phase One, the original 

allocation was increased from £75,0000 to £80,000, the full amount to be allocated 

to the Capital Programme for 2021-22 and approved at a meeting of this 

Page 21 Agenda Item 6



 

Committee on 2 November 2021. This enabled £80,000 of the City Delivery Fund to 
be released back into use for revenue projects. 

 
2.8 Phase Two involves improving the bin stock further through the introduction of new 

litter and recycling bins in additional locations, providing more capacity across the 

City. In addition, Premier Parks bins which required refurbishment and re-branding 
were also included as part of Phase Two. An allocation of £323,000 was added to 

the Capital Programme for 2022-23 and was approved at Council on 22nd February 
2022. 

3. Information 
 

3.1 For Phase One, 78 new concrete foundations and 126 new bin cabinets were 
installed between October 2021 and March 2022. The work was undertaken by the 
Council’s in-house Minor Works Team. The total cost for completing Phase One was 

£71,970 against a budget of £80,000. 

3.2 For Phase Two, planning commenced in February 2022 to produce the work 

programme for the installation across the City of: 

• 136 concrete bin foundations 

• Supply and fitting of 411 black bin cabinets for litter 

• Supply and fitting of 104 green bin cabinets for recycling 

• Installation of 52 refurbished and 19 new litter bins in parks 

3.3 Learning as part of phase 1 has resulted in new bin cabinets now  incorporating a 
higher specification glue for the logos and branding and will also include internal 
deflector plates to stop waste falling down the sides in between the wheelie bin and 

the cabinet. 

3.4 The Council’s Minor Works Team are undertaking the project and commenced the 

bin foundation work for phase 2 in May. 

3.5 Procurement of bin cabinets has commenced with a planned delivery date set for 

July 2022. 

3.6 Members will be notified as to when the work will commence in their wards. 

3.7 Further public communications will be carried out before the Phase Two bin cabinets 

are installed. The details will be developed with the Council’s Communications Team 
but will include schools and other educational establishments. 

 
 
Ward(s):   All 

Contact Officer: Tim Allen, Environmental Operations Project Manager 
Tel: 01905 752981 

Email: tim.allen@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers:  N/A 
 

Page 22

mailto:tim.allen@worcester.gov.uk


 

 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 7 June 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director – Operations, Homes and Communities 
 

 
Subject:  MANAGEMENT AND PROTECTION OF PUBLIC OPEN SPACE 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1     That the Committee notes the content of this report. 

2. Background 

 
2.1 This report intends to provide Members with details of the remedies available to the 

Council to deal with instances where land used or intended for use as public open 
space is taken out of use without necessary permissions being sought. This is often 
referred to as ‘land grabbing’. 

2.2 The report has been developed in response to several concerns that have been 
raised by Ward Councillors to various services across the Council, that would 

ordinarily investigate such claims including Property Services, Legal Services, 
Planning Services and Environmental Operations. 

2.3 The subject of this report is one that could naturally sit within more than one 

Committee of this Council (i.e. Place & Economic Development Committee) and 
Members may wish to consider whether there are any recommendations they wish to 

make to another Policy Committee depending on the nature of the recommendation.  

3. Information  
 

3.1 There is no universal definition of open/green space, in respect of size, quality or 
description. However open space is defined in the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 as land laid out as a public garden, or used for the purposes of public 
recreation, or land which is a disused burial ground. 

3.2 Subject to the local policies in a local development plan, if land is held as public open 

space it cannot be disposed of unless the process under section 123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) is used. The disposal must be advertised, and 

objections considered before any disposal can take place. 

3.3 Land may also be protected by legal covenants governing use of the land as public 
open space, as is the case with much land that forms part of housing led planning 

applications. 

3.4 The benefits of green spaces whether in public ownership, or private ownership but 

accessible without payment, have never been more important. This became 
evidently apparent through the four COVID-19 lockdown periods where people 
(many for the first time) spent extended times outdoors in the fresh air, often in the 

variety of local green amenity space the UK has to offer.  

Page 23 Agenda Item 7



 

Publicly accessible green spaces are critically important to supporting health & well-
being whether that be exercising or socialising and there is a growing sense that 

people have reconnected with such areas as a result of the Pandemic. 

3.5 In addition, green spaces have become of critical importance to environmental 
sustainability and in particular enhancing biodiversity. The Council has approved an 

Environmental Sustainability Strategy with one of its aims being ‘To protect 
Worcester’s natural environment and enhance its biodiversity’. There are several 

commitments within the strategy to protect and enhance biodiversity and encourage 
and facilitate access to public open spaces across the City.  

3.6 It is important therefore that public open space owned by or designated for 

ownership by the council is protected and not taken out of use unless there is a 
justifiable ‘public interest’ argument that is brought forward for Members to consider, 

and that due process has been followed. 

3.7 It should be noted that the Council has no formal policy on the disposal of land held 

as public open space and such a policy is not a legal requirement. Currently the 
Council will judge each case on its merits where a request for disposal of public open 
space is received from another party or where the Council considers it necessary to 

dispose of public open space to enable development, or to facilitate the delivery of 
essential or identified services. 

3.8 Two such cases where the Council has deemed it in the public interest to dispose of 
public open space include a parcel of land at Hopton Street (St. Johns Ward) which 
had been identified within the South Worcestershire Development Plan for housing 

and was subsequently sold to Platform Housing for the development of 25 affordable 
homes. This scheme was completed in 2021.  

3.9 The second case was a parcel of land within the St Peters Ward (Begonia Close) 
which had become land-locked as a result of Worcestershire Highways purchasing 
land to widen the A4440 and Ketch roundabout and install an acoustic fence to 

mitigate noise The remaining public open space (trees / shrubs) had become 
increasingly inaccessible from the public footpath as a result of the acoustic fence 

and adjoined the front and side of private properties on Begonia Close. Given it was 
providing no community benefit it was agreed to sell the land to the adjoining 3 
property owners with a restrictive covenant for use as garden only. 

3.10 Where the Council has received requests to dispose of small areas of public open 
space and officers have determined it would not be appropriate, the applicant has 

been advised that such a disposal would not be recommended for approval, and it 
has not been necessary for the application to be referred for further consideration.  

3.11 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, minor land sales are approved/refused 

under the delegated authority of the Corporate Director - Finance and Resources and 
the Corporate Director – Planning and Governance.   

3.12 In respect of cases where a third party has encroached on public open space within 
the Councils ownership without consent, then the Council will take appropriate action 
to remedy any unauthorised access, trespass or adverse possession. It would not be 

appropriate to consider planning contravention in such cases as that is not the 
primary issue at play, whereby unauthorised access, illegal trespass, or adverse 

possession is.  

Page 24



 

3.13 There are four active planning enforcement cases for such instances in the Warndon 
Parish South Ward at present with enforcement action having commenced or 

pending in each of the cases.  

3.14 Similar issues of ‘land grabbing’ can also arise where the Council has granted 
planning permission for a development and part of that permission is the provision of 

green open space, commonly referred to as green infrastructure, that may in some 
instances be transferred to the Council at some point in the future.  

3.15 Some local issues that have been brought to the attention of officers have related to 
land that is due to be transferred to the Council pursuant to the terms of a planning 
agreement for use as public open space only, but that transfer has not yet been 

completed. Such arrangements can take months and in some cases years to 
complete.  

3.16 Where there are outstanding transfers of public open space to the Council, the more 
likely it is that residents perceive that no one organisation is taking responsibility for 

such land, which therefore presents an opportunity for them to enclose land within 
their property boundary. However, in many cases even where ownership has not 
transferred, the Council will be maintaining the land – grass and hedge-cutting – 

pending freehold transfer and so any works to hedgerows encroachment onto land 
which is the Council’s responsibility is picked up and investigated by the Council. 

3.17 It is also worth pointing out therefore, that where the Council has adopted the land 
via a planning agreement, the Council would have to ensure the land is used as 
public open space in line with the restrictive covenant. If at some future stage the 

Council wished to take the land out of public use, it would be required to formally 
request a release of covenant in addition to the formal advertisement process as 

already set out within this report. This is a potentially a costly process for the 
purchaser and the costs may outweigh the value of the land. 

3.18 The planning enforcement position is relatively straight forward on such cases 

regardless of whose ownership the land ‘gained’ is in. If land has been taken out of 
use as ‘open space’ and has become used for ‘garden’, i.e. there has been a material 

change of use, then this would trigger a planning enforcement investigation. It is 
likely that where such an unauthorised change of use is confirmed that a Planning 
Enforcement Notice would be issued requiring that the land be returned to its 

previous use and condition and where necessary any associated means of enclosure 
such as walls or fences and any domestic paraphernalia be removed. 

 
 
Ward(s):   All 

Contact Officer: Lloyd Griffiths – Corporate Director (Operations, Homes & 
Communities) 

 Tel: 01905 722371 
 E-mail: lloyd.griffiths@worcester.gov.uk  
Background Papers: N/A  

Page 25

mailto:lloyd.griffiths@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 7th June 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director - Finance and Resources 
 

 
Subject: ANNUAL AND QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2021/22 

 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That the Committee notes the Council’s annual and quarter 4 performance 

for 2021/22. 
 

2. Performance Reporting Framework 
 
2.1 A suite of Performance Scorecards have been developed providing a one page 

overview of priority projects, activities and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) under 
the functions of each committee. 

 
2.2 The Scorecards are supported by a more detailed appendix providing a brief 

narrative update for projects and activities and a visual representation of PIs in the 

form of run graphs or charts as applicable. This provides context in terms of 
progression, trends and seasonal variations to support reporting using RAG 

assessments (Red, Amber or Green). 
 

2.3 The Scorecard has been refreshed for 2021/22 with projects completed in the last 

financial year replaced with new projects as previously agreed by this committee. 
 

2.4 The annual and quarter 4 performance report for the Environment Committee is 
attached as Appendix 1.   
 

 
 

Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer:   Jo Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer,  
   01905 722407,  

   Email: Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk  
Background Papers: None 

Page 27 Agenda Item 8

mailto:Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 29 Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2 
 

Environment Committee 

Performance Report 
 
 

Environment Projects & Actions 2021/22 
 
 

Action Status 

 Cancelled 

 Overdue; Neglected 

 Unassigned; Check Progress 

 Not Started; In Progress; Assigned 

 Completed 
 

  

 

Environmental Sustainability Action Plan (continual review and delivery of actions) 

A report on progress in delivering the action plan will be 
presented to Environment Committee in June 2022. 

 
This action is showing as red because Committee did not 

receive a progress report during the second half of 2021/22 
and therefore the action was not complete as of March 
2022. 

 
An action to receive two reports per year will be included in 

the scorecard for 2022/23. 

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome   

 

Bereavement Services Facilities Review 

As agreed at the March 2022 Committee, due to the 
potential commercial sensitivity of this project it will not be 
included within the 2022/2023 Committee Scorecard. Work 

continues to progress however in developing an options 
appraisal report and this will be reported back to this 

Committee in due course. 

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 31-Mar-2023 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2020 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome   

 

Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme 

Delivery continues on Phase 1B of the scheme with a 
deadline extension of 31st August 2022. A total of 37 out of 
140 properties (40 O/O & 100 RSL on the original bid) have 

been upgraded so far. Contractor availability and new PAS 
standards did set the project back several months but the 

extension until the end of August means that we are on 
track to now complete 26 O/O and 100 RSL properties. As a 
result of the extension agreed with the Department for 

Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS), it is 

Sponsor Tom Mountford 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome   

Appendix 1 

Page 30



3 
 

proposed that the deadline for this project will be extended 
to 31st August 2022. 

 
Phase 2 of delivery is also underway. This phase is focused 

on upgrading low efficiency storage heaters in off-gas flats 
and the installation of other measures in homes such as 
upgraded doors, windows and boiler controls. The target is 

80 properties. The cut-off date for referrals was 31st March 
2022 at which point we had received 59 referrals and are 

currently on track to complete all 59 properties by 30th 
June 2022 providing we have no cancellations. We received 
nearly 200 expressions of interest for this phase of the 

scheme but ultimately only 66 applications (7 of which have 
since declined measures or cancelled their applications). We 

are exploring ways of addressing this low conversion rate 
under the next phase of the scheme. 
 

A further £1million of funding has been awarded to 
Worcester City Council under the Sustainable Warmth 

Competition which combines Local Authority Delivery Phase 
3 (LAD3) for on-gas properties and Home Upgrade Grant 

Phase 1 (HUG1) for off-gas properties. The delivery deadline 
is 31st March 2023. A delivery plan has been submitted for 
approval to the Midlands Energy Hub with a target of 

installing 113 measures over the next 12 months, with 
some properties receiving multiple measures. 

 
 

Perdiswell landscaping Phase 2 - Perdiswell Park 

The preparation of tender documentation and the 
procurement process for the Phase 2A landscape works 
have been completed.  A successful application has been 

made to Natural Networks that has secured grant funding of 
£90,837 towards the implementation of significant 

biodiversity enhancements.  The funding Agreement with 
Natural Networks has been signed and the contract for the 
landscape works prepared.  An inception meeting has been 

held with the contractor and the grant funder with work to 
begin on site on Monday 25 April 2022.  Defunct golfing 

structures will be removed; a new surfaced path suitable for 
pedestrians and cyclists will be constructed and seats, 
fingerposts and interpretation boards installed.  Biodiversity 

enhancements will be implemented including the creation of 
bee banks, hibernacula and installation of bird and bat 

boxes and the creation of in excess of 3.5 hectares of 
wildflower meadow/shaded grassland.  This work will be 
completed by August.  In November the contractor will 

return to site to carry out 2.4 hectares of woodland and tree 
planting (over 6,000 trees and shrubs), 158 metres of 

hedge planting and 6,200 bulbs to be planted during the 
appropriate seasons for these types of work for completion 

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Jul-2019 

Current Status  

Expected Outcome  

 

Page 31



4 
 

by Christmas. 
 

Given the delay to the start of the project the completion 
date for the project will be December 2022. 
 

Riverside Park Improvements to maintain and enhance Green Flag status 

In the last quarter consultation commenced on the design 

and content of 16 totem signs proposed to be installed at 
the primary entrances into the park.  Bedwardine, 
Cathedral, St Clement and St John Ward Members, 

landowners, leaseholders and Council colleagues were 
invited to consider the concept proposals for the totems and 

offer suggestions. The detailed design was developed in 
terms of branding, accessibility, layout and content.  An 
integrated approach has been developed that aims to raise 

the profile of the park and strengthen its identity by 
referencing local biodiversity and Worcester’s riverside 

history.  Improved physical and virtual connections with the 
city centre are proposed including links to ‘What’s On’ and 
‘What’s Nearby’ hosted on the Visit Worcester website and 

access to historical data on  ‘Know Your Place Worcester’ 
website. Text and imagery have been collated for totems 

and shared with the sign designer with proofs expected 
during April.  The waymarker post design has been 
approved and manufacture commenced.  Floor tile designs 

are under review following consultation with Worcestershire 
Highways.  It is anticipated that the installation of signs will 

commence in May. 
 

Clearance of Japanese Knotweed dead stems has been 
carried out along the riverbanks in the park following 
treatment in Autumn 2021.  Further management is 

envisaged during 2022 to prevent further spread of this 
invasive species. 

 
Given the delay in the start of the project it is now 
envisaged that the completion will be in November 2022 

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

30-Sep-2020 

Current Status  

Expected Outcome  

 

 

A programme of environmental and sustainability communications and campaigns 

to promote awareness 

Q4 2022 
Events  

27 environment and sustainability related events took place 
in Q4 including: • Litter picks • Gardening Groups • Tree 
Planting Events • Coppicing • Community Clean Up • Bird 

Watching • Swan Sanctuary Enhancements • University 
Study Groups on Water Quality 

 
Promotion 
These opportunities were promoted via the monthly 

Community Engagement Enewsletter to over 650 groups, 

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2021 

Current Status  

Expected Outcome  

 

Page 32



5 
 

organisations and individuals, advertised via the Community 
Engagement poster round in each of the 38 noticeboards in 

parks and open spaces, and were also promoted on social 
media where relevant. 

 
In terms of posts on social media: There were 39 posts on 
each platform (Facebook, Instagram, Twitter) relating to 

Environment and Sustainability. This resulted in 40,968 
total impressions and 3,576 engagements 
 

Develop an action plan to tackle Ash Dieback and increase trees across the City 

Action closed following update report presented to 

Environment Committee in May 2021. Ongoing management 
of Ash Dieback now in place. 

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Mar-2021 

Current Status  

Expected Outcome   
 

Public Bin Investment Programme 

For Phase One, the Council's Minor Works Team installed 5 
foundation bases and 96 bins during Quarter 4. There are 2 

bases and 3 bins to complete Phase One. These are at Lark 
Hill Road, Tolladine Road and Trotshilll Lane East. Both 
Tolladine Road and Trotshill Lane East bases are scheduled 

to be completed early in Quarter 1. As part of Phase One we 
were able to incorporate bins at four additional locations to 

those planned. 
 
Preparation for Phase Two of the scheme has commenced 

and the procurement of the bins will be progressed during 
April. Installation of new foundation bases are also 

scheduled to begin in April. Bin installations are planned to 
commence in July subject to supply chain availability.  
 

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 31-Mar-2025 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2025 

Current Status  

Expected Outcome  

 

 

Allotments Review 

Action closed following report presented to Environment 

Committee in November 2021 regarding the outcome of the 
review.  

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 31-Dec-2021 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Dec-2021 

Current Status  

Expected Outcome   

Page 33



6 
 

 

Improve arterial routes 

Update report presented to May Environment Committee. 
Ongoing management now in place – action to be closed.  

Sponsor Sandra Green 

Due Date 31-Mar-2020 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2019 

Current Status  

Expected Outcome   
 
 

Environment Key Performance Indicators - End of Year 2021/22 
 

PI Status 

 Alert 

 Warning 

 OK 

 Unknown 

 Data Only 
 

 

Carbon Emissions 

Description: Total greenhouse gas emissions from City Council buildings and operations, 
given in tonnes of CO2 equivalent (the emissions of other greenhouse gases 
are expressed in terms of the amount of CO2 that would create the same 

amount of warming). This includes our community and leisure centres. 

 

RAG (2020/21)  Value (2020/21) 1,307 
Sponsor 

David 
Sutton Aim to Minimise Target (2020/21) 1,450 

The Council’s overall carbon footprint for 2021-22, including emissions from buildings, 

transport and facilities run by third parties such as Freedom Leisure, is currently being 
calculated and will be reported to the Committee in September 2022 

Page 34



7 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2020/21 1,307 1,450   

2021/22 TBC 1,420 TBC  
 

 

% of household waste recycled and composted 

Description: The percentage of household waste collected which has been sent for reuse, 
recycling or composting (green bins and brown bins) 

 

RAG  Current Value 34% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 
Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 37% 

The amount of recyclable and compostable waste collected in Q4 2021-22 reduced by 206 
tonnes in total compared to Q4 2020/21. 

 
This figure is below the estimated percentage target of 37% but has increased slightly 

compared with 33.8% in 2020/21. 
 
*Tonnages for March have been estimated as they aren’t available at the time of reporting. 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q4 2020/21 34.13% 37% 

Q1 2021/22 38.25% 40% 

Q2 2021/22 37.83% 37% 

Q3 2021/22 35.5% 38% 

Q4 2021/22 34% 37% 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2020/21 35.36% 37%   

Page 35



8 

2021/22 36.6% 38%   
 

 

% of household waste recycled  

Description: Percentage of household waste that is sent for recycling through green ‘dry 
recycling’ bins only. 

 

RAG  Current Value 30.58% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 
Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 36% 

Recyclable waste collected in Q4 2021-22 reduced by 204 tonnes in total compared to Q4 
2020/21. 

 
The figure is below the estimated percentage target but is on par with 30.66% in Q4 2020-
21. 

 
*Tonnages for March have been estimated as they aren’t available at the time of reporting. 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q4 2020/21 31% 36% 

Q1 2021/22 31.2% 30% 

Q2 2021/22 31.3% 27% 

Q3 2021/22 30% 32% 

Q4 2021/22 30.58% 36% 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2020/21 29% 31%   

2021/22 29.1% 31%   
 

Page 36



9 

 

% household waste composted 

Description: Percentage of household waste that is sent for composting. This is waste 
collected from the garden waste collection service and composted (brown 
bins) 

 

RAG  Current Value 3.37% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 
Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 2% 

The amount of compostable waste collected has decreased by 2 tonnes in the quarter 
compared to 20/21, giving a percentage of 3.37% compared to 3.14 % in 2020/21. 

 
There has been an influx of an additional 676 garden waste customers compared to Q4 2020-

21. 
 
*Tonnages for March have been estimated as they aren’t available at the time of reporting. 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q4 2020/21 3.14% 1% 

Q1 2021/22 8.5% 10% 

Q2 2021/22 10.3% 9% 

Q3 2021/22 5.55% 6% 

Q4 2021/22 3.37% 2% 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2020/21 6.61% 6%   

2021/22 7.5% 7%   
 

Page 37



10 

 

Residual household waste collected per household (kg) 

Description: The household waste collected NOT including waste sent for reuse, recycling 
or composting  

 

RAG  Current Value 107 
Sponsor 

Sandra 

Green Aim to Minimise Current Target 107 

Residual waste decreased by 438 tonnes (compared to Q4 2020/21) decreasing the average 
kilogrammes of residual waste per property from 118kg in 2020/21 to 107 in Q4 2021/22. 
This is against an estimated target of 107 kg. 
 

The change in the waste volumes is seen as a direct result of behavioural change driven by 
the COVID pandemic with previous lockdowns meaning residents spending more time at 

home and therefore creating additional waste that would normally not have found its way 
into the domestic collection waste stream. 
 

With Government guidance changing as a return to a more normal way of life continues, the 

volume of residual waste is decreasing and returning to more normal levels shown before the 
pandemic. (106kg in Q4 2019-20) 

*Tonnages for March have been estimated as they aren’t available at the time of reporting. 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q4 2020/21 117 109 

Q1 2021/22 117 124 

Q2 2021/22 113 117 

Q3 2021/22 111 109 

Q4 2021/22 107 107 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2020/21 497 436   

2021/22 448 457   
 

Page 38



11 

 

Total amount of household waste collected per household (kg) 

Description: The total amount of household waste collected from black, green and brown 
bins, bulky waste, street sweepings and separately collected recycling (e.g. 
bring banks) 

 

RAG  Current Value 162 
Sponsor 

Sandra 
Green Aim to Minimise Current Target 170 

The total amount of household waste collected decreased by 644 tonnes (compared to Q4 
2020/21) decreasing the average kilogrammes of residual waste per property from 178kg in 

2020/21 to 162 in Q4 2021/22. This is against an estimated target of 170 kg. 
 

The change in the waste volumes is seen as a direct result of behavioural change driven by 
the COVID pandemic with previous lockdowns meaning residents spending more time at 

home and therefore creating additional waste that would normally not have found its way 
into the domestic collection waste stream. 
 

With Government guidance changing as a return to a more normal way of life continues, the 
volume of waste is decreasing and returning to more normal levels shown before the 

pandemic. (154kg in Q4 2019-20) 
 
*Tonnages for March have been estimated as they aren’t available at the time of reporting. 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q4 2020/21 178 173 

Q1 2021/22 190 187 

Q2 2021/22 182 182 

Q3 2021/22 172 175 

Q4 2021/22 162 170 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

Page 39



12 

2020/21 771 694   

2021/22 706 714   
 

 

% animal fouling cleared within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of animal fouling reported by customers and 
cleared within agreed time - 1 working day 

 

RAG  Current Value 96% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 
Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 90% 

 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q1 2021/22 88% 90% 

Q2 2021/22 83% 90% 

Q3 2021/22 100% 90% 

Q4 2021/22 96% 90% 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2021/22 92% 90%  n/a 
 

Page 40



13 

 

% of street litter cleared within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of street litter and animal fouling reported by 
customers and dealt with within the agreed response time of 2 working days 

 

RAG  Current Value 92% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 

Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 80% 

 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q1 2021/22 81%  

Q2 2021/22 86% 80% 

Q3 2021/22 93% 80% 

Q4 2021/22 92% 80% 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2021/22 87% 80%  n/a 
 

Page 41



14 

 

% of street detritus and weeds cleared within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of street detritus and weeds reported by 
customers and dealt with within the agreed response time of 5 working days 

 

RAG  Current Value 95% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 

Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 80% 

 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q4 2020/21 69%  

Q1 2021/22 81% 80% 

Q2 2021/22 90% 80% 

Q3 2021/22 98% 80% 

Q4 2021/22 95% 80% 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2021/22 92% 80%  n/a 
 

Page 42



15 

 

% of poor grass maintenance cleared within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of poor grass maintenance reported by customers 
and dealt with within the agreed response time - 5 working days 

 

RAG  Current Value 100% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 

Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 80% 

 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q4 2020/21 13%  

Q1 2021/22 77% 80% 

Q2 2021/22 53% 80% 

Q3 2021/22 100% 80% 

Q4 2021/22 100% 80% 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2021/22 84% 80%  n/a 
 

Page 43



16 

 

% overflowing litter / dog waste bins dealt within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of overflowing litter / dog waste bins reported by 
customers dealt with within agreed response time - 1 working day 

 

RAG  Current Value 95% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 

Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 95% 

 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q4 2020/21 52%  

Q1 2021/22 94% 95% 

Q2 2021/22 94% 95% 

Q3 2021/22 100% 95% 

Q4 2021/22 95% 95% 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2021/22 95% 95%  n/a 
 

Page 44



17 

 

% fly-tipping cleared within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of fly-tipping reported by customers and cleared 
within agreed response time - 2 working days 

 

RAG  Current Value 93% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 

Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 90% 

 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q4 2020/21 67%  

Q1 2021/22 89% 90% 

Q2 2021/22 86% 90% 

Q3 2021/22 98% 90% 

Q4 2021/22 93% 90% 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2021/22 91% 90%  n/a 
 

Page 45



18 

 

% of street assessed as Excellent or Acceptable across all five Street Scene Places 

Description: The percentage of assessments to be excellent or Acceptable recorded by 
volunteers across a range of street scene criteria using the Street Scene 
Standards document. Includes North, South, East & West ‘Places’ and the City 

Centre ‘Place’.   

 

RAG  Current Value 94% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 
Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 85% 

 

Quarters 

 Value Target 

Q4 2020/21 96%  

Q1 2021/22 88% 85% 

Q2 2021/22 92% 85% 

Q3 2021/22 92% 85% 

Q4 2021/22 94% 85% 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2021/22 92% 85%  n/a 
 

Page 46



19 

 

No. of street scene assessments the across City Centre Place by grade  

Description: The number of street scene assessments observed across City Centre Place by 
grade: A = excellent, B = acceptable, C = Poor, D = Unacceptable 

 

RAG  
Current 
Value 

Grade A - 0 
Grade B – 20 
Grade C – 0 

Grade D - 0 

Sponsor 
Sandra 
Green Aim to Maximise 

 

Quarters Value 

 Grade A Grade B Grade C Grade D 

Q1 2021/22 13 7 0 0 

Q2 2021/22 5 15 0 0 

Q3 2021/22 5 15 0 0 

Q4 2021/22 0 20 0 0 

Annual 

 Grade A Grade B Grade C Grade D 

2021/22 23 57 0 0 
 

Page 47



20 

 

No. of street scene assessments across 4 Main Places by grade  

Description: The number of street scene assessments observed across City Centre Place by 
grade: A = excellent, B = acceptable, C = Poor, D = Unacceptable 

 

RAG  
Current 
Value 

Grade A - 7 
Grade B – 67 
Grade C – 6 

Grade D - 0  

Sponsor 
Sandra 
Green Aim to Maximise 

 

Quarters Value 

 Grade A Grade B Grade C Grade D 

Q1 2021/22 2 31 6 1 

Q2 2021/22 6 65 8 0 

Q3 2021/22 11 61 7 1 

Q4 2021/22 7 67 6 0 

Annual 

 Grade A Grade B Grade C Grade D 

2021/22 26 224 26 2 
 

Page 48



21 

 

Satisfaction with street cleansing 

Description: % of annual survey respondents who stated that they were either satisfied or 
fairly satisfied with street cleansing in Worcester City 

 

RAG  Current Value 62.31% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 

Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 67.15% 

Annual PI. Satisfaction questions were included in the Annual Survey undertaken in 

October/November 2021. The percentage satisfaction with street cleansing has dropped since 
the previous survey in 2020. 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2020/21 67.15% 63.4%   

2021/22 62.31% 67.15%   
 

Page 49



22 

 

Satisfaction with rubbish collection and recycling 

Description: % of annual survey respondents who stated that they were either satisfied or 
fairly satisfied with rubbish collection and recycling in Worcester City 

 

RAG  Current Value 85.89% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 

Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 87.83% 

Annual PI. Satisfaction questions were included in the Annual Survey undertaken in 

October/November 2021. The percentage satisfaction for rubbish collection and recycling has 
dropped slightly since the previous survey in 2020. 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2020/21 87.83% 84.12%   

2021/22 85.89% 87.83%   
 

Page 50



23 

 

Satisfaction with parks and play areas 

Description: % of annual survey respondents who stated that they were either satisfied or 
fairly satisfied with parks and play areas in Worcester City 

 

RAG  Current Value 75.04% 
Sponsor 

Sandra 

Green Aim to Maximise Current Target 72.21% 

Annual PI. Satisfaction questions were included in the Annual Survey undertaken in 

October/November 2021. Satisfaction with parks and play areas has increased since the 
previous survey in 2020. 

Annual 

 Value Target Status Short Trend 

2020/21 72.21% 78.76%   

2021/22 75.04% 72.21%   
 

 
  

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Progress Update for the Environmental Sustainability Strategy Action Plan
	Environmental Sustainability Action Plan Appendix 1

	6 Public Bin Investment Programme
	7 Management and Protection of Public Open Spaces
	8 Annual /Quarter 4 Performance Report 2021/22
	202122EnvironmentPerformanceReportAnnual v0.5 Final


